AGENDA ITEM 5

Consideration of objections with respect to Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law with Nonfinal Order in the matter of Walthers v.

DNR, Administrative Cause No. 13-147W

¢ Finding of Fact and Conclusions of Law with Nonfinal Order (issued on March 7,
2016)

e Written Objections received from Paul Walthers on March 24, 2016, for which
service was perfected on March 30, 2016 by Petitioner’s daughter, Lisa Walthers.



BEFORE THE
NATURAL RESOURCES COMMISSION
OF THE
STATE OF INDIANA
IN THE MATTER OF:
PAUL WALTHERS ) :
Petitioner, ) Administrative Cause
) Number: 13-147W
Vs, _ )
)
)
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES )
Respondent. ) (VTS-DM-3951)

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
WITH NONFINAL ORDER

Statement of the Proceeding

1 On August 31, 2013, Paul Walthers (“Walthers”) and Ronald Richards and Carolyn
Richards (“Richards™") filed correspondence with the Natural Resources Commission
(“the Commission”) requesting an administrative review of Notice of Violation
number VTS-DM-3951 (“NOV™), issued to Walthers and Richards by the

- Department of Natural Resources (“DNR”).

2 Correspondence filed by Walthers and Richards avers that DNR issued an NOV to
Walthers and Richards for “an alleged violation of Indiana Code (1.C.) 14-27-7.5....7
and that Walthers and Richards “allege and contend that the basis and the engineering
determination upon which the NOV was issued for Forest Lake Dam #32-17 is
incorrect.” :

3 Indiana Code (“IC”) 14-25.5 provides the authority to DNR to issue a NOV for the
enforcement of IC 14-27, as relevant to this proceeding. IC 14-25.5-1-1.

4 The NOV, issued by the DNR Division of Water, was attached to the Petitioners’
correspondence and is dated August 22, 2013. DNR alleges, within the NOV, that
Walthers and Richards violated IC 14-27-7.5 ef seq., commonly known as the “Dam
Safety Act”, pertaining to the regulation and classification of dams. The NOV states
the following as the Nature of the Violation:

! The Richards withdrew their request for administrative review prior to hearing. While some information
regarding the Richards is included and relevant to this decision, Walthers is the sole remaining Petitioner.
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Forest Lake Dam is a high hazard dam (State Identification #32-17), and is
located in Section 10, Township 15N, Range 1E, showing on the Brownsburg
Quadrangle map, and within Hendricks County.

A dam owner is required by Indiana Code (1.C.) 14-27-7.5 to keep the structure
(dam) maintained in a safe condition by the exercise of prudence, due regard for
life and property, and the application of sound and accepted technical principles.

Findings:

The owners of the Forest Lake Dam are Paul R. Walthers, and Ronald D &
Carolyn Richards.

The Forest Lake Dam is an unsafe, unauthorized dam. There is no record of a
permit issued for this dam or as-built engineering plans proving the structure was
properly designed and constructed. A high hazard inspection report has not been
received for the structure as required by 1.C. 14-27-7.5.

The owners of the Forest Lake Dam have failed to maintain and keep the structure
in the state of repair and operating condition required by the exercise of prudence,
due regard for life and property, and the application of sound and accepted
engineering principles which is a violation of Indiana Code 14-27-7.5.

The owners have not complied with the recommendations of the February 23,
2013 letter which asked that the owners to complete a series of scheduled actions
including retaining registered professional engineer experienced in dam design,
performing high hazard inspection reports and submitting such reports to DNR.
Also requested was a lowering of the lake to safer level until safety deficiencies
could be resolved. These actions and the failures to act are violations of Indiana
Code 14-27-7.5.

5 NOV’s issued pursuant to IC 14-25.5, are addressed procedurally by IC 4-21.5-3-6,
and become effective unless a person timely requests administrative review under the
Administrative Orders and Procedures Act, commonly referred to as “AOPA”. IC
14-25.5-2-4 and IC [4-25.5-2-5.

6 The correspondence filed by Walthers and Richards timely initiated administrative
review under AOPA and the administrative rules adopted by the Commission at 312
IAC 3-1 to assist with the implementation of AOPA. IC 14-10-2-3.

7 The Commission is the “ultimate authority” with respect to the subject matter of the
instant proceeding and it has adopted rules at 312 IAC-10.5 to assist with the
administration of the Dam Safety Act. IC 4-21.5-1-15 and 312 I4C 3-1-2.

8 The Commission has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this proceeding and over
the persons of the parties.
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The Commission’s Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”), Stephen Lucas, was
appointed and assigned the proceeding. Following the retirement of ALJ Lucas, ALJ
Dawn Wilson accepted the appointment and assignment of this case as a substitute
qualified ALJ. IC 14-10-2-2.

DNR was represented throughout the proceeding and was represented by Attorney
Sean Wooding at the administrative hearing. '

The Richards were represented by John Mervilde and Nicholas Gahl. The Richards
were no longer parties to this matter when the administrative hearing was heard.

Walthers was self-represented throughout the proceeding.

Following the issuance of notice to Walthers, Richards, and DNR, ALJ Lucas
conducted a prehearing conference on October 2, 2013, in Indianapolis, Indiana. The
Report of Initial Prehearing Conference and Notice of Second Prehearing
Conference, dated October 3, 2013, records a summary of the events that occurred
during the prehearing conference. ALJ Lucas ordered DNR to file a statement of
contentions by November 18, 2013. The Petitioners’, were each ordered to file and
serve their statements of contention by December 18, 2013, including any applicable
affirmative defense.>

DNR filed a statement of contentions on November 18, 2013. The statement alleged
specific violations on which DNR based its NOV,

Walthers filed a response to DNR’s statement of contentions on December 16, 2013,
but no statement of contentions. Walthers asserted in his response to DNR’s
statement of contentions:

a “IC 14-27-7.5-1 specifically states that the chapter does not apply to properties
such as Lake Forest.”

b Walthers states he “became a lake dweller in 1966 and purchased the lake and
dam properties in 1972. ... When the lake was first developed no water entered the
property from the north of the railroad and Highway 36. The watershed was less
than a half square mile. Over the years, the state and county agencies’ programs
diverted watershed into Lake Forest.” He asserted that it is “against the law to
change the natural watershed to a neighbor’s property and thereby cause said
neighbor fo have problems.” He asserted that the consensus of three Indiana

% The Petitioners are also referred to as the Claimants throughout this proceeding.

? The parties were advised of AOPA’s prohibition against ex parfe communication with the ALJ within the
September 5, 2014, written notice setting the prehearing conference, orally during the prehearing
conference and in the ALY’s order summary of the prehearing conference. On August 4, 2015, following ex
parte communication by Walthers to the ALJ, the communication was disclosed and distributed as required
by 1C 4-21,5-3-11(¢). On August 13, 2015, following ex parfe communications by Lisa Walthers, two
additional disclosures with distribution were made by the ALJ as required by IC 4-21.5-3-11(=).
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Legislators and numerous Hendricks County government officials is that if DNR
declares the dam is a high hazard problem, “the DNR should fix it.”

¢ Walthers acknowledged that he was informed, in writing, that the dam was
classified as a high hazard dam in 2003. However, Walthers asserts that the “risk
of damage to the dam and adjoining lake properties is very minimal.”

16 The issues were assigned to mediation on January 14, 2014. A Mediator’s Report was
filed stating that the parties met and mediated on February 24, 2014. The mediator’s
report stated that mediation did not result in agreement but that the parties requested
additional time to further explore settlement options.

17 On July 23, 2015, a status conference was heard, following the filing of status updates
by the parties, as requested by the ALJ. Thereafter, the following prehearing orders
were issued by order dated July 24, 2015:

a The parties were ordered to exchange Preliminary Witness and Exhibit Lists on or
before August 27, 2015.

b Discovery was to be completed on or before October 1, 2015.

¢ The parties were ordered to exchange and file Final Witness and Exhibit lists on
or before October 13, 2015.

d A Final Status Conference was set for October 26, 2015.

¢ An administrative hearing was scheduled to be heard on November 9, 2015.

18 Upon motion by Richards, prehearing deadlines were extended and the hearing date
was vacated to allow the parties the opportunity to discuss settlement. The date
originally set for a Final Status Conference was converted to a Second Status
Conference and the Final Status Conference was reset to be heard on December 15,
2015.°

19 During the Second Status Conference on October 26, 2015:

a The discovery deadline was extended to November 16, 2015.

b The deadline to exchange Final Witness and Exhibit lists and to file the Final
Witness and Exhibit List with the ALJ was expanded to include an exchange of
all potential exhibits between the parties by December 1, 2015. The prehearing
order states, “Any exhibit not exchanged may be excluded from consideration at a
hearing, upon objection by any party, at the discretion of the ALJ.”

¢ The hearing was reset to be heard on February 8, 2016,

20 On November 17, 2015, having resolved maters through settlement, DNR and
Richards filed an Agreed Settlement and Stipulation of Dismissal.* The ALT issued a
Final Order of Dismissal as to Ronald and Carolyn Richards on November 18, 2015..

* The Agreed Settlement and Stipulation of Dismissal states “Ronald and Carolyn Richards (Richards) and
the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) hereby agree and stipulate to the dismissal of the Richards
from this administrative action, with prejudice, as well as from any further action relating to the underlying
Notice of Violation dated August 22, 2013 (VTS-DM-3951) and the purported regulated structure.
Richards and DNR have resolved these matters via settlement.”
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On December 1, 2015, DNR and Walthers each filed witness and exhibit lists.

On December 15, 2015, during the Final Status Conference:

a DNR asserted that no potential exhibits had been received from Walthers.
Walthers did not dispute DNR’s assertion. Yet again, the ALJ ordered Walthers to
provide his potential exhibits to DNR and set an additional deadline, December
28, 2015. ‘

b The ALJ granted DNR’s request for a more specific delineation of witnesses in
Walthers® witness and exhibit list for potential witnesses identified as “lake
dwellers” and “forthcoming experts.”

¢ DNR also advised that numerous Interrogatories were received from Walthers on
November 16, 2015, and requested additional time to respond to the request.
DNR’s request was granted.

d To allow Walther’s an opportunity to review DNR’s Interrogatory responses,
Walthers was allowed to file an appropriate amended witness and exhibit list
before January 21, 2016.

e A Supplemental Final Status Conference was set for January 29, 2016.

f The hearing date, February 8, 2016, remained unchanged.

On January 12, 2016, an email from Lisa Walthers was received by the ALJ
requesting a meeting to discuss the settlement terms between DNR and Richards. On
January 14, 2016, an Order Denying Petitioner’s Request to Meet with the ALJ was
issued.

On January 29, 2016, a Supplemental Final Status Conference was heard:

a DNR asserted that Walthers had not provided any potential exhibits to DNR.
Walthers confirmed DNR’s assertion to be true. The ALJ informed Walthers
orally and in the written summary of the conference that his disregard of the
ALJ's prior orders regarding the exchange of potential exhibits could prevent the
admission of documents that he might offer at hearing.

b DNR reported that it had received an amended witness and exhibit list from
Walthers. The amended list was not filed with the Commission, contrary to the
ALI’s order.

On February 8 and 9, 2016, Walthers and DNR attended the administrative hearing,
in Indianapolis, Indiana. Walthers appeared, self-represented, who was accompanied
by his daughter, Lisa Walthers. DNR appeared by counsel, Sean Wooding, who was
accompanied by DNR Attorney Ed Harcourt and Jon Eggen, DNR’s Division of
Water, Compliance and Enforcement Manager. '

Findings of Fact’-DNR Jurisdiction to Regulate Forest Lake Dam
Walthers challenges DNR’s jurisdiction to regulate Forest Lake Dam.

> Findings of fact that may be construed as conclusions of law and conclusions of law that may be
construed as findings of fact are so deemed.
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Jon Eggen (“Eggen”) has been the Manager of the Compliance and Enforcement
Section of the DNR Division of Water since 2007. Eggen conducts inspections,
supervises inspections, reviews documents and drafts warning letters and violations,
including required time frames and optional mitigation, if applicable. See testimony
of Eggen.

A stream runs to and through Forest Lake. See testimony of Eggen.

DNR claims jurisdiction over dams that have at least one of three criteria. One
criterion is that the dam has a drainage area that exceeds one square mile. The second
is when a dam is at least 20 feet in height. The third is when the structure impounds at
least 100 acre feet of water.

Susie Delay (“Delay™) is a Hydraulic Engineer in the Compliance and Enforcement
Section of the DNR Division of Water. Delay has worked for DNR for 20 years, with
over two years in her current capacity. In her position, Delay performs inspections for
potential and ongoing violations and she prepares engineering documentation for all
active violations including computer modeling and calculations for dam safety. Delay
calculates breach assessments o determine the impact of a catastrophic dam failure
on structures downstream, including residential, commercial and bridges. Her
calculations concerning that impact are used by DNR in hazard determinations. See
testimony of Delay and Eggen.

Delay determined the height of the structure to be 19 feet, calculated at the top of the
dam, Delay determined the volume of water impounded to be 55 acre fect. See
testimony of Delay and Exhibit H°.

DNR is not claiming jurisdiction over the dam based on the height of the dam or the
volume of the impoundment. See testimony of Knipe.

DNR rests its authority to regulate the Forest Lake Dam on its determination that the
drainage area of Forest Lake Dam is more than one square mile, See testimony of

Knipe.

David Knipe is the Engineering Section Manager, for the Central Basin Team for
DNR’s Division of Water. Knipe has been with DNR for over 24 years. Knipe
manages engineering functions within the Division of Water, including flood plain
mapping and hydraulics. See testimony of Knipe.

On behalf of DNR, Knipe calculated the drainage area above the Forest Lake Dam.
Knipe conducted his analysis by using “ArcHydro” software, an ArcGIS mapping
program and StreamStats, an online product available fo the general public through
the United States Geological Survey (USGS) website. With these products, he
reviewed “one foot contour mapping” that he obtained from Hendricks County

$ DNR’s exhibits are identified by letters. Petitioner Walthers® exhibits are identified by numbers.
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records and subdivision plans for the upper end of the watershed. See testimony of
Knipe.

36 Knipe preformed an analysis and determined which way water flows in the area
above the dam. He then concluded that the watershed, or drainage area, is
approximately 1.23 square miles. See Testimony of Knipe, Eggen and Exhibits F and
G. ‘

37 Walthers refuted the conclusions reached by Knipe by producing maps indicating
watershed areas of less than one square mile for an area above Forest Lake.
However, the drainage areas addressed by those maps begin at a point upstream of the
lake and do not include the area of Forest Lake itself. See testimony of Walthers,
Eggen and Exhibits 1 and 2.

38 ALJ finds that the drainage arca of Forest Lake is approximately 1.23 square miles.

39 Walthers argues that growth in Hendricks County, and specifically Avon, has _
increased the “watershed” of Forest Lake. Walthers’s offers no evidence to support a
change in the area of the watershed’. See testimony of Walthers.

Findings of Fact- NOV basis: High Hazard Classiﬁcation & Inspection Reports

40 Within Walther’s response to DNR’s statement of contentions Walthers states that he
received a letter from DNR identifying the Forest Lake Dam as “high hazard” in
2003. No evidence of this notification was provided by either party. Walthers now
requests reconsideration of the Forest Lake Dam classification as a high hazard dam.

41 Tn 2004, DNR staff informed Walthers that Soliman Sherkawi, Engineering Geologist
informed Walthers that the Forest Lake Dam was classified as a “significant hazard
dam.” When Walthers was asked if there was any “new development downstream, he
said that there is a road and a bridge under it.” It is unclear from the evidence whether
the hazard classification reported by DNR indicated a change from the injtial high
hazard classification or if the determination was based on the information provided by
Walthers, which omitted disclosure of the subdivision. See Exhibit 7.

42 Dam hazard classifications change over time, depending on what is found to be
downstream of the dam. See testimony of Eggen and Exhibit 7.

43 Delay determined a breach assessment for the Forest Lake Dam. She analyzed best
available data and established hazard calculations, based on a catastrophic breach of
Forest Lake Dam on a sunny day. Her determinations were based on sunny day
breach calculations so as to consider only the water potentially impounded by the

? Walthers asserted that the watershed has in_creaséd but a reasonable conclusion is that Walthers assertion
related to an increase in the volfume of water within the watershed, not the area of the watershed, due to
development above the dam.
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dam, without additional water from rain. Based on the height of the dam and the
volume of the impoundment at the top of the dam, Delay established a total dam
break breach discharge to be “5037 cfs”. See testimony of Delay and Exhibit H.

Delay then calculated the impact of such a failure downstream, based on the surface
elevations within the “maximum breach inundation area”. She captured water surface
elevations to establish a flow path at various cross sections on the map identified as
Exhibit H. As she expected, her calculations revealed lower water surface elevations
further from the breach point. Based on her calculations, she determined the breach
inundation area included a county road and structures, specifically homes, and found
that some homes were above breach elevation. She determined that 29 homes were
within the breach inundation area, with 12 having the home’s lowest adjacent grade at
least one foot below the elevation, or a flood depth of over one foot, inside those “
structures. Her determinations are based on her mathematical calculations of the best
available information, not utilization of software. See testimony of Delay and Exhibit
H.

Delay determined, based on her calculations and analysis, that Forest Lake Dam
should be classified as a high hazard structure. See testimony of Delay and Exhibit T,

page 2.

Walthers does not believe that the dam is a high hazard dam because the volume of
water in the lake would not create an actual threat to life and property downstream.
To support his assertion, Walthers reports that there is quite a bit of sediment in the
lake. In addition, he measured the depth of the lake at various points on the lake from
a boat. Ie acknowledges that his measurements are “not all that accurate”, but he
believes that the depth would not create a danger downstream. See testimony of
Walthers.

It is noted that Delay’s calculations are based, in part, on the height of the dam and
the potential impoundment of the lake. Walthers’s calculation is based on the water
level at various points on the lake on a specific but undisclosed date. A maximum
breach inundation area, as defined by 312 1AC 10.5-2-7 includes an uncontrolied
release of a dam’s contents when “the impoundment is at maximum design pool
elevation.” Delay’s calculations would be the appropriate figures to use when
calculating the impacted area below the dam. 312 14C 10.5-2-7.

Walthers argues that the Forest Lake Dam should not be designated as a high hazard
dam because he believes DNR approved downstream residences in the neighborhood
of Thornridge. Walthers argument is not supported by the facts. See testimony of
Walthers and Exhibit 3.

To support his contention, Walthers submitted a DNR permit from 1995, for
construction activities within the floodway consisting of “two 14” diameter storm
sewer outfall pipes with with metal end sections, and approximately 30 linear feet of
a grass swale with 4:1 side slopes.” The permit also included a reference to riprap to
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be placed at the base of the outlets for energy dissipation. The permit states that the
residential subdivision would be developed landward of the floodway except portions
of Lots 13, 14 and 15. The permit applicant was “Thornridge, Inc.” See Exhibit 3.

DNR’s authority under the Flood Protection Act includes the authority to issue
permits for constraction in a floodway, here the unnamed tributary to White Lick
Creck. A DNR memorandum, dated April 7, 1995, states that plans for the project
proposed would not “dectease the cross-section flow area of the stream.” The
locations of the houses within the Thornridge subdivision are not in the floodway and
were not included in the permit issued by DNR. See testimony of Eggen and Exhibit
3. :

The ALJ finds that Walthers’ evidence does not support his contention that DNR
approved the Thornridge subdivision. The ALJ also finds that a DNR permit approval
does not equate to approval of the underlying project for which a permit is requested.

George Crosby (“Crosby”) is the Manager of Dam and Levee Safety Section for DNR
and has been in his current position for over 25 years. He possesses a Mastet’s
Degree in Engineering Geology from Purdue. See testimony of Crosby.

While DNR’s dam safety program began in the early 1960s, Crosby recalls that there
were changes to the law in 2002 which thereafter, required high hazard dam owners
to file reports. See testimony of Crosby.

Ken Smith (“Smith”) is a Civil Engineer and the Assistant Director of the DNR
Division of Water, with over 39 years of experience with DNR. Smith currently
oversees four sections, (1) enforcement, (2) surveying, (3) project development and
(4) dam safety. See testimony of Smith.

Smith participated in a site visit of Forest Lake Dam prior to issuance of the NOV.

He determined that one basis for the NOV issued was that the owners had not
submitted the reports required for a high hazard dam reflecting the owner’s engineer’s
inspection findings. See testimony of Smith.

On the date of the administrative hearing, none of the required inspection reports had
been submitted by Walthers. No contrary evidence was presented that alleged
inspection reports had been filed by Walthers. See testimony of Smith.

Findings of Fact - NOV basis: State of Repair/Operating Condition

Walthers estimates that Forest Lake Dam was built 75 years ago. See testimony of
Walthers. '

Walthers was a “caretaker” of the dam for 50 years and was engaged in “taking care
of the litter”, including the removal of leaves, tree limbs and other debris. He
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acknowledges he placed sandbags at the primary spillway but asserts the placement
was designed to be temporary. See testimony of Walthers and Exhibit D.

Walthers acknowledges that he has not activelylcared for the dam since 2013. See
testimony of Walthers.

Crosby estimates that Forest Lake Dam was built over 50 years ago and that its
design and construction were not originally permitted by DNR or its predecessor. See
testimony of Crosby.

Since the construction of Forest Lake Dam, there have been no DNR permits issued
to authorize alterations to the dam, such as observed changes to the principle spillway
and the placement of fill in the abutment zone of the dam. See testimony of Crosby
and Exhibit J-17.

Walthers acknowledges that he has made alterations to the structure and has “worked
hard” to eliminate erosion. He constructed a retaining wall to keep the water from
traveling down the road and washing out the bridge. Walthers made alterations to the

"dam because he observed an increase in water flow into his lake from the Town of

Avon. Over time, he has had as many as 10 engineers on the dam. However, when
making various alterations to the dam, Walthers did not use plans developed by one
or more engineers. See testimony of Walthers.

Walthers states that he has built several subdivisions and has a general science degree
from Purdue, as well as other master’s degrees in undisclosed disciplines. Walthers is
not a licensed engineer but he claims to possess information and experience
concerning “how things work” and he believes that engineering specifically related to
dams is “not all that complicated”. While a couple of engineers live on the dam,
Walthers reports that “we are not licensed super hydraulics experts, no we’re.., none
of us.” See testimony of Walthers.

Crosby’s perspective of dam safety generally is that it is a multi-disciplinary science.
Crosby oversees technical clements of the creation of new dams by working with the
professional engineering teams hired by property owners, in the areas of site
selection, planning and construction. Crosby ensures adequate supervision by a
design engineer for construction permits. Once built, Crosby and his staff regulate
dam maintenance and repairs, including the permitting of dam alterations. Crosby
involves himself with the long term management of structures throughout the life of
Indiana dams. For dams classified as high hazard, he reviews high hazard dam reports
that are submitted, as required, every two years by the owners of high hazard dams.
Croshy also acts as a general advisor to others, including other agencies, for issues
involving dam safety. See testimony of Crosby.

Crosby asserts that, while all dams have some risk of failure, with proper upkeep and

maintenance, dams can maintain an acceptable level of safety. The purpose of good
engineering design, construction and maintenance is to reduce risk. Crosby analogizes
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an improperly designed, constructed and maintained dam to a bus with bad brakes
and tires. “Not all busses with bad brakes and tires will crash but there is an elevated
risk of a safety problem.” The standards required by DNR are minimally acceptable
safety standards. While DNR regulates dams, dam owners are responsible to control
and safely impound the water, and owners may choose higher standards than those
required by DNR. See testimony of Crosby.

Delay conducted site visits and inspections of the Forest Lake Dam on several
occasions. Every time she was there, she observed something that caused her concern
and she expressed these concerns to her supervisors. See Testimony of Delay and
Exhibit I.

Eggen observed the site of the Forest Lake Dam prior to the issuance of the NOV. He -
took photographs at the site to capture his observations of the general condition of the
site. Eggen observed sandbags placed at the primary spillway raising the elevation of
the lake. He also observed a structure within the lake that provided for drainage.
Downstream from the lake, he saw a road and residences in a subdivision across the
road. After the site visit, he reached a conclusion based on his observations that the
dam was in violation, because it was in disrepair, alterations had not been propetly
completed and that the dam presented potential safety concemns downsiream. His
conclusions resulted in the issuance of a warning letter on February 28, 2013, to
Walthers concerning noncompliance in the care of the dam. In the correspondence, he
included corrective measures that were recommended by DNR. See testimony of
Eggen and Exhibit B and D.

Crosby and Delay conducted a site visit of the Forest Lake Dam on May 15, 2013.
Crosby took photographs of items that concerned him about the “extremely poor
maintenance and apparent multiple unauthorized modifications to the structure..
Specifically, on May 15, 2013, Crosby observed what he determined to be “ serious
issues” and deficiencies with the embankment, the primary spillway and the auxiliary
spillway. See testimony of Crosby and Exhibit J-1.

a Crosby observed the following deficiencies in the embankment:

i) Large trees are on the crest of the dam’s embankment. The roots of living
trees will break down soils that should be compacted and seek out the water
tables. When trees die, their decaying roots will create flow paths for water
and create voids in the dam, substantially weakening the strength of the dam.
Also trees may be downed in a windstorm and may remove huge portions of
the embankment of the dam. Trees also inhibit the proper inspection of a dam,
in that trees prevent the ability to “sight across” and inspect for bulges that
indicate potential problems.

i) An unauthorized utility shed is seen on the embankment. The placement of the
shed is unacceptable because it prohibits inspection under the shed, it attracts
animals to reside and burrow into the soils of the dam and it increases
shedding of water in a rainstorm in a concentrated area.

iif) Crosby observed uncompacted and potentially unstable fill on the downhill
slopes as well as erosion, voids and depressions on the slopes.
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iv) Crosby observed buried and partially buried pipes in the embankment and
noted water flowing outside a discharge pipe adjacent to the principle
spillway, indicating internal erosion in the structure.

See the testimony of Crosby and Exhibit J-1, J-5, J-12, J-17, Exhibit K.

b Crosby observed serious deficiencies with the design and maintenance of the
principle spillway of the Forest Lake Dam.

i) Crosby found that the location was not well suited for the open chute principle
spillway found at Forest Lake Dam. He also observed that the open spillway
system was not properly designed, in that it was built over manmade fill, and
the spillway system was undersized. An appropriate design would include a
closed large concrete box riser with an appropriate “trash rack” connected to a
concrete box with seepage control features. An adequate design for an open
cute principle spillway would include concrete slabs for the floor, a vertical
retaining wall, a cut off wall and subsurface drains downstream for seepage
control. None of those features appear in this dam, which resulted in erosion
of the embankment, a sinkhole and weakening of the integrity of the dam. The
inappropriate and inadequate design creates a risk of breach.

ii) He also observed poor maintenance through cracks, missing rocks, and
extensive erosion. He observed small and large voids providing dangerous
flow paths for internal erosion. In addition, he found that the sides above the
stilling basin of the primary spillway were nearly vertical and he observed that
it had been patched together on numerous occasions. He observed erosion in
this area and attempted repairs that did not appear stable.

iii) At the primary spillway, Crosby observed seepage at the end of a pipe
indicating seepage from the collars and around the outside of the pipe, which
causes internal erosion along the outside of the pipe. Walthers was not present
when the photographs were taken but he denies that the photographs show
water running outside the pipe. Walthers believes water in the photographs is
running through the pipe, not around the pipe and is coming from the pipe in
the lake. Crosby observed no water was entering the pipe in the lake on the
day he took the photos. The photographs show water flowing out of the pipe
as well as around the outside of the pipe. It is unclear from the photograph
within the lake whether there is water flowing info the pipe from the lake.
Uncontrolled seepage creates a safety issue because, as the water over the
years saturates the soils, added pressure results which undermines the integrity
of the dam. A properly designed dam would include appropriate subsurface
controls to pick up the seepage and discharge it at points that can be
monitored over the life of the structure. The Forest Lake Dam seepage, over
time, will impact the integrity of the dam.

See testimony of Walthers, Crosby and Exhibit I-1, J-3, -4, J-6, J-7, J-8, J-9, J-

10, J-11,7J-12, J-18, J-20.

¢ Also on May 15, 2013, Crosby observed serious unauthorized, improper

alterations and deficiencies regarding the auxiliary spillway, also commonly
referred to as an emergency spillway.
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i) He observed the addition of a concrete wall, reducing the capacity of the
spillway system by blocking water flow.

ii) Crosby observed damage to the spillway outlet with “cobbled” repair attempts
from too frequent operation of the spillway. Crosby observed that fill had
been added to the right abutment. It is unusual that the addition of soil would
be needed and Crosby determined that the addition would require a permit to
ensure it had been done as the owner and the owner’s engineer recommended
and as the alteration had been approved.

iii) Crosby observed and photographed a view of the inlet for the emergency
spillway showing concrete blocks, debris and a pontoon close enough to the
inlet to block the spillway reducing capacity. In addition, he saw that there is
no cut off wall in the area creating a risk for water to flow under the slab.

See testimony of Crosby and Exhibit J-17, J-18, J-19, J-20.

Crosby prepared a report of the deficiencies that he observed. He summarized the
deficiencies in a report and determined that “the dam and spillway have serious safety
deficiencies and with time these problems will continue to worsen and threaten the
integrity of the structure.” See testimony of Crosby and Exhibit J-1.

Exhibit K includes an additional summary of deficiencies in Forest Lake Dam. See
Exhibit K.

Smith determined that a basis for the NOV was that owners of the dami are
responsible to maintain their dam in a safe state of repair. Based on his own
observations and the reports from his staff with expertise in modeling and dam safety,
he determined that the structure known as Forest Lake Dam had multiple serious
deficiencies. See testimony of Smith.

Based on their education, experience and observations of the Forest Lake Dam over
time, Crosby and Smith concluded that the Forest Lake Dam was not sufficiently
strong; not maintained in a good and sufficient state of repair or operating condition;
not designed to remain safe during infrequent loading events and unsafe; and
dangerous to life and property, in accordance with the requirements found in 1C 14-
27-7.5-11. Based on information he personally gathered and information gathered by
his staff, Eggen drafted NOV number VTS-DM-3951 and it was issued by DNR on
August 22, 2013. See testimony of Eggen, Smith and Exhibit A.

Following the initiation of this proceeding, as a mitigation effort, Walthers putina
siphon system and some pipes. He also removed collars on the draw down structures
in the lake. Those efforts are no longer functioning in that, at some later time, the
collars and rigs were put back on the drain. See testimony of Smith.

Following the issuance of the NOV, Crosby conducted a site visit in July of 2015 and
prepared an Emergency Log to document an event. The site visit followed the report
of a major incident or emergency and revealed that the dam was in a state of
progressive failure. Crosby predicted during his site visit memorandum in 2013, “The
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grouted principle spillway chute is seriously deficient and a probable location of
where a breach of the dam could initiate....” In 2015, the principle spillway had failed
and a “good portion” of the principle spillway chute was gone. See testimony of
Crosby and Exhibit E, |

The Richards worked with their “owner engineer”, Ross Holoway, a private
professional engineer, who sent an email on July 10, 2015, stating, “The dam was in
active failure with severe damage to the principle spillway.” See testimony of Crosby
and Exhibit E, pages 6 and 13, and J-1.

Smith and Crosby concur that Forest Lake Dam is in a progressive state of failure.
See testimony of Crosby and Smith.

In 2015, Smith met with Walthers, the Richa::pds,8 and the Richards’ professional
engineer. A discussion concerning mitigation occurred so that the conditions seen on
that day could be addressed due to impending rain. Lowering the water was stressed
by the Richards® engineer. Toward this end, Walthers removed two sections of the
drawdown pipe in the lake to assist with the lowering of the lake. While minimal
temporary measures were taken by Walthers at that time, the underlying violations
have not been resolved. Contrary to Walthers® desires, the Richards’ professional
engineer worked with a contractor fo alter the auxiliary spillway in order to reduce
pressure on the primary spillway. See testimony of Smith and Exhibit E.

Forest Lake Dam was not properly designed or constructed and has not been
appropriately maintained, which has resulted in placing people at risk downstream.
Crosby asserted during the administrative hearing that Forest Lake Dam, in its current
state, should be redesigned and reconstructed or decommissioned. See testimony of

Crosby.

Smith determined that, with appropriate permits, the lake could be placed at a low
water level, which would allow permitted redesign and reconstruction to occut. In
recognition of the ongoing expenses of dam maintenance, an alternative would be for
the dam to be decommissioned, a onetime cost. Decommissioning may be the least
costly alternative. See testimony of Smith.

Crosby has observed that long term dam upkeep is expensive and commonly the costs
associated with ownership are often spread out through mechanisms such as dam
ownership by an association. See testimony of Crosby.

Crosby has determined that, if 2016 has a wet spring, it is not unlikely that Forest
Lake Dam will experience a breach. Upon a breach, there is a high likelihood that an
uncontrolled discharge would result in serious consequences downstream.,
Consequences could include a reduction in the values of downstream properties,
property damage, as well as other consequences. Short of a full breach, in the event of
an additional emergency event, people downstream may need to be evacuated,

® The Richards were parties to this proceeding at the time.
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progressive state of failure. See testimony of Crosby.

Findings of Fact-Walthers as appropriate NOV recipient

Walthers acknowledges that he owns 6.8 acres in Hendricks County, Indiana. He
estimates his ownership interests encompass approximately 90% of the Forest Lake
Dam structure, including the primary and auxiliary spillways for the dam, as well as
the lake bed of Forest Lake. Walthers formerly owned but has now sold a residence
that was on or near the lake. See testimony of Walthers.

Walthers states that the DNR “demand”, to rebuild the dam, is something he cannot
afford. Decommissioning the lake is also cost prohibitive and he will require a court
order to take that action, as lake dwellers, whose property values fall, and individuals
whose wells are impacted, will consider litigation. He does not want to be in the
position of being the one who makes changes to the dam. Walthers has neighbors
who ‘will hold him responsible for consequences of dewatering the dam. Walthers
concluded, without a supporting basis for his conclusion, that DNR must
decommission the dam and own the impact of the resultant changes. See testimony of

Walthers.

Walthers believes that owners should take care of their property and that a dam owner
should be responsible for a dam they own, with qualifications. He claims interference

above and below the dam.

~a Above the dam, he claims that the State of Indiana, Hendricks County, the town

of Avon, the highway department and factories have interfered. See testimony of

Walthers.

i) Walthers believes that interference came in the form of increased storm water
flowing into Forest Lake. Walthers asserts that if Hendricks County and the
town of Avon, had not grown and added schools and subdivisions, and
widened state highways, his “farm pond” and “dam” would have had few
changes in the last 50 years. Walthers presented no evidence of his assertion,
except for his personal observations and perceptions that the water flowing
into Forest Lake has increased over time. See testimony of Walthers.

ii) Walthers presents the question, “How can your office and the state of Indiana
hold an individual responsible for an increase in surface water drainage of
which I have no control? I feel my property rights, my civil rights and due
processes are being aggressively violated by the Indiana Department of
Natural Resource”. See testimony of Walthers.

iii) Eggen reports that DNR has no authority to regulate the volume of surface
water entering the watershed of Forest Lake. See testimony of Eggen.

b Below the dam, Walthers claims interference through the approval of the

subdivision of Thornridge. See testimony of Walthers and Exhibit 3.

i) DNR did not approve the residences within Thormldge See testimony of
Eggen and Exhibit 3.
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if) Walthers presented insufficient evidence of any other Thornridge approval
that he determined would constitute “interference” with his property.
¢ Walthers presented insufficient evidence of other actions, which he determined to
be “interference” with his property.

85 Anecdotally, Walthers argued at the administrative hearing that there are other
owners of Forest Lake Dam, the Richards. In fact, those owners were identified on
the NOV at issue in this administrative cause. The Richards withdrew their request to
contest the NOV. Walthers continues to contest the NOV but indicated his desire to
“have the same deal”. See testimony of Walthers.

86 Walthers stated at the administrative hearing: “When you have people that come in
from downtown that threaten you with $10,000 fines, $1,000 a day until we jump
high enough and do whatever they ask me to do. And that was, that was when I
walked away. Then in addition to that when I walked away, I had to sell my home
because I was out of money and 1 was trying to sell my home before the
neighborhood would go dead.” He informed the purchasers that there would probably
be no lake ....” He asserted that his plans are to “give everything up that he can” and
“get out of town”. See testimony of Walthers. -

87 Walthers stated that he would like for the State of Indiana to “meet their
responsibility.” See testimony of Walthers.

Conclusions of Law

88 The jurisdiction of DNR?: is defined by IC 14-27-7.5-8(a) as follows:
" 1) The department:

. (1) has, on behalf of the state, jurisdiction and supervision over the
maintenance and repair of structures in, on, or along the rivers, streams,
and lakes of Indiana;

(2) shall exercise care to see that the structures are maintained in a good and
sufficient state of repair and operating condition to fully perform the
intended purpose,

(3) shall grant permits for the construction and operation of structures in, on,
or along the rivers, streams, and lakes of Indiana;

(4) may adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 for permitting, maintenance, and
operation that are necessary for the purposes of this chapter; and

(5) may vary the standards for permits, maintenance, and operation, giving
due consideration to the following:

(A) The type and location of the structure.

(B) The hazards to which the structure is or may be exposed.

(C) The peril to life or property if the structure fails to perform the
structure's function.

? The “department” referenced in ¥C 14-27-7.5-8 is the Department of Natural Resources, referenced as
“DNR” in this decision.
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IC 14-27-7.5-8(a).

The authority of DNR, to regulate dams in Indiana, both at the time of the NOV and
the administrative hearing, is limited to dams that are not excluded by IC 14-27-7.5-
1(B): R
This chapter does not apply to the following:
(1) A structure that meets the following conditions:...
(B) Has a drainage area above the dam of not more than one (1) square
mile.
{C) Does not exceed twenty (20) feet in height.
(D) Does not impound a volume of more than one hundred (100} acre-feet
of water.... :
IC 14-27-7.5(B).

DNR is authorized to “Ascertain, determine, designate and define natural drainage
and reclamation areas. ...Prepare computations of the probable maximum quantity of
water likely to be collected from a drainage or reclamation area..... IC [4-27-1-1(4)
and (3).

Forest Lake Dam is a structure, as defined by 312 TAC 14-27-7.5-5.

Forest Lake Dam is on or along é stream.

Forest Lake Dam has a drainage area above the dam of over one square mile.
The authority for DNR to regulate dams includes Forest Lake Dam.

As to the hazard classification, DNR may assign a rating, known as a hazard
classification to a dam; “based on the potential consequences resulting from the

uncontrolled release of its contents due to a failure or misoperation of the structure.”
IC 14-27-7.5-2. '

Dam classifications are determined based on “best available information” to be “high
hazard”, significant hazard” or “low hazard. IC [4-27-7. 5-8" and 312 TAC 10.5-3-1.

When making the determination to classify a dam, DNR “...may consider
observations of the dam and the vicinity of the dam, including the risk posed to
human life and property if the dam fails.” 312 IAC 10.5-3-1(c)(1).

0 1C 14-27-7.5-8(b) requires the classification of three levels as follows: ... The hazard classification
system must include the following classes of structures: (1) High hazard: A structure the failure of which
may cause the loss of life and serious damage to homes, industifal and commercial buildings, public
atilities, major highways, or raileoads. (2) Significant hazard: A structure the failure of which may damage
isolated homes and highways, or cause the temporary interruption of public utility sexrvices. (3) Low
hazard: A structure the failure of which may damage farm buildings, agricultural land, or local roads.”
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A dam owner may request reconsideration of a hazard classification. “(b) The dam
owner or other affected person may submit any technical information or reports that
were not previously available to the division. (¢) The dam owner's or other affected
person's professional engineer may develop and submit a maximum breach
inundation area and current damage evaluation assessing the downstream area
affected by a dam breach. (1) If the maximum breach inundation area and current
damage evaluation predicts any of the following, the dam shall be classified as high
hazard: (A) Flood depths greater than one (1) foot in any occupied quarters. (B) Loss
of human life may occur. (C) Interruption of service for more than one (1) day on any
of the following: (i) A county road, state two-lane highway, or U.S. highway serving
as the only access to a community. (i) A multilane divided state or U.S. highway,
including an interstate highway. (D) Interruption of service for more than one (1) day
on an operating railroad. (E) Damage to any occupied quarters whete the flow
velocity at the building compromises the integrity of the structure for human
oceupation. (F) Interruption of service to an interstate or intrastate, utility, power or
communication line serving a town, community, or significant military and
commercial facility, in which disruption of power and communication would
adversely affect the economy, safety, and general well-being of the arca for more than
one (1) day.” 312 14C 10.5-3-2.

Walthers’ challenge in this proceeding is considered a request for reconsideration of
the hazard classification. However, Walthers presented no technical information or
report that was not previously available to the Division of Water to refute the
classification. In addition, Walthers failed to present an assessment of the maximum
breach inundation area prepared by a dam owner’s professional engineer.

100An uncontrolled breach of the Forest Lake Dam would result in flood depths greater

than one (1) foot within, on or about, 12 occupied quarters, as defined by 312 TAC
10.5-2-9, within the maximum breach inundation area, defined by 312 IAC 10.5-2-7.

312 TAC 10.5-3-2(c)(1)(4).

101 The Forest Lake Dam is properly classified as a high hazard dam.

102 The ownets of a high hazard dam are required to file inspection reports. The reports

are specifically identified in IC 14-27-7.5-9(a), which states:

The owner of a high hazard structure shall:

(1) have a professional engineer licensed under IC 25-31 make an engincering
inspection of the high hazard structure at least one (1) time every two (2)
years;

(2) submit a report of the inspection in a form approved by the department to
the department. The report must include at least the following information:

(A) An evaluation of the structure's condition, spillway capacity,
operational adequacy, and structural integrity.

(B) A determination of whether deficiencies exist that could lead to the
failure of the structure, and recommendations for maintenance, repairs,
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and alterations to the structure to eliminate deficiencies, including a
recommended schedule for necessary upgrades to the structure.
IC 14-27-7.5-9(a).

103 A professional engineer is “an individual who, because of special knowledge of the:
(1) mathematical and physical sciences; and (2) principles and methods of
engineering analysis and design; that are acquired by education and practical
experience, is qualified to engage in the practice of engineering, as attested by the
individual's registration as a professional engineer and license to practice engineering
in Indiana under IC 25-31. 312 IAC 10.5-2-11.

104 No engineering inspection reports have been submitted by Walthers® professional
engineer licensed under IC 25-31.

105 DNR is obliged to issue a notice of violation under IC 14-27-7.5-11 to the owner of a
high hazard dam who fails to “have the structure inspected...” or who fails to
“perform recommended maintenance, repairs, or alterations to the structure...” or
who fails to “biennially submit the inspection repott...” IC 14-27-7.5-9(c).

106 The NOV issued by DNR, reflects the deficiency by the owners of Forest Lake Dam
to have the dam propetly inspected and to file required repotts.

107 The deficiencies are accurately assessed in that no inspection reports have been
submitted to DNR and the evidence supports the issuance of the NOV on that basis.

108 The NOV identifies an additional violation to be that Forest Lake Dam is an unsafe,
unauthorized dam.

109 Forest Lake Dam was not initially permitted when it was constructed.

110 Walthers has performed unpermitted and improper alterations to the Forest Lake
Dam.

111 The owner of a structure, defined by 14-27.5-5 as a dam'! and its appurtenant
works'?, regulated under IC 14-27-7.5, “shall maintain and keep the structure in the
state of repair and operating condition required by the following: (1) The exercise of
prudence. (2) Due regard for life and property. (3) The application of sound and
accepted technical principles.” IC 14-27-7.5-7(a).

Wenpam® means an artificial manmade barrier, including appurtenant works, that meets the conditions as
iven in IC14-27~7.5-17. 312 I4C 10.5-2-3.
2 " Appurtenant works" means auxiliary features of a dam that are reasonably required for the safe and
proper operation of the structure. The term may include each of the following: (1) The spiliway system. (2)
Outlet works. (3) Gates and valves. (4) Tunnels. (5) Conduits. (6) Levees. (7} Embankments. 3/2 IAC 10.5-

2-2.
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112 For a dam classified as a high hazard dam, following a required inspection, if the
“licensed professional engineer who conducted the inspection determines that
maintenance, repairs, ot alterations to a high hazard structure are necessary to remedy
deficiencies in the structure, the owner shall perform the recommended maintenance,
repairs, or alterations. If the owner does not “perform the recommended maintenance,
repairs or alterations to the structure” DNR is obligated to issuc a NOV to the owner
of the owner of the high hazard structure. IC 14-27-7.5-9(b) and (c).

113 If DNR finds that a structure is “ (1) not sufficiently strong; (2) not maintained in a
good and sufficient state of repair or operating condition; (3) not designed to remain
safe during infrequent loading events; or (4) unsafe and dangerous to life and
property; the department may issue a notice of violation under IC 14-25.5-2.” IC 14-
27-7.5-11.

114 DNR inspected the Forest Lake Dam and discovered, as supported by the evidence
submitted during the hearing, that Forest Lake Dam is “(1) not sufficiently strong; (2)
not maintained in a good and sufficient state of repair or operating condition; (3) not
designed to remain safe during infrequent loading events; or (4) unsafe and dangerous
to life and property...”, consistent with the requirements set forth in IC 14-27-7.5-11.

115 Before the issuance of the NOV, DNR staff observed that the Forest Lake Dam was
not found to be in a minimally acceptable state of repair and notified Walthers in
writing on February 28, 2013.

116 On August 22, 2013, DNR issued the NOV in writing, detailing the violations of IC
14-27-7.5. The violations within the NOV are supported by the evidence presented at
the administrative hearing. Forest Lake Dam is incorrectly designed, improperly
maintained and in a progressive state of failure. '

117 As it relates to the regulation of dams in Indiana, an owner “means an individual...
who has a right, a title, or an interest in or to the property upon which the structure is
located.” IC 14-27-7.5-4. '

118 Walthers is an owner of real property which includes approximately 90% of the
structure of Forest Lake Dam, including the lakebed of Forest Lake, the primary and
auxiliary spillways as well as a substantial portion of the embankment.

119 Due to his ownership interests, the NOV should have been addressed to Walthers.
The NOV was addressed to Walthers.

120 Walthers® argues that he should bear less than the full responsibility assessed to high
hazard dam owners because DNR approved a downstream subdivision. This issue is
not critically considered because the evidence does not support a conclusion that

" DNR approved the subdivision below the dam.
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121 Walthers® argues that he should bear less than the full responsibility assessed to dam
owners due to the increase in surface water within the watershed of Forest Lake Dam
over time. Walthers failed to provide evidence sufficient to support a finding that
there has been an increase in surface water to the watershed, or drainage area, of
Forest Lake Dam. Even if there is an increase, such an increase would not reduce
Walthers® responsibility as an owner of the dam as documented within the NOvV.»

122 Walthers argues that he should bear less than full responsibility due to parts of the
dam being owned by one or more other owners. Walthers and the Richards were
identified in the NOV. The Richards settled their dispute with DNR and were
dismissed from this proceeding. DNR’s authority to issue an NOV extends only to’
dam owners. Walthers did not identify any owner who was not named in the NOV.

Nonfinal Order
1) The NOV is affirmed.

2) Walthers shall comply with the requirements identified under the section of the
NOV identified as “Action Appropriate to Mitigate the Violation” by completion
of etther all of Action 1 or'all of Action 2, within 90 days.

Dated: March 7, 2016 M\Q\Qﬁw\

Dawn Wilson

Administrative Law Judge

Natural Resources Commission
Indiana Government Center North

100 North Senate Avenue, Room N501
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2200
(317) 232-4699

A copy of the foregoing was sent to the following:

Paul Walthers
11565 N, Lambert Ct.
Mooresville, IN 46158

1 The Commission’s jurisdiction in this case is limited to the NOV. This decision does not consider any
redress Walthers may have with respect to any other claim. This decision expressly does not advance any
position on any matter beyond the scope of this administrative review and the jurisdiction of the

Commission.
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Sean Wooding

Legal Counsel

Department of Natural Resources
Indiana Government Center South.

402 West Washington St., Room W295
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

A copy of the foregoing was sent a$ a courtesy to persons listed below. A person filing a
pleading or documents is not required to serve these persons:

Dave and Jill Byers
6685 Cross Street
Avon, IN 46123

Jeanne Coonse
6541 Lake Forest Drive
Avon, IN 46123

Indira Harden
409 Wild Rose Lane
Avon, IN 46123

T.isa Walthers
5244 11™ Street South
Arlington, VA 22204

Jim Andrews, Assistant Engineer
Hendricks Co. Government Center
355 S. Washington Street #209
Danville, IN 46122

DNR Division of Water, Loxi Schnaith
DNR Division of Fish and Wildlife, Linnea Petercheff
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Paul R. Walthers E [E IE ” W E

Y
11565 N. Lambert Court MAR 2 272016
-
e
Mooresville, IN 46158 By 7‘%—

317-370-0954

"FILED
MAR 3973076 al

NATURAL RESOURCES COMMISSION
.~ DIVISION OF HEARINGS

March 22, 2016

AOPA Committee

Natural Resources Commission Certified Mail with Return Receipt
Indiana Government Center North

100 North Senate Avenue, Room N501

Indianapolis, IN 46204-2200

In the Matter of : Administrative Cause Number: 13-147W (VTS-DM-3951)

Paul R. Walthers, Petitioner vs. Department of Natural Resources,
Respondent

Written Objections:

indentifies the basis of the objections with reasonable particularity. My
objections are not limited to the following information.
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AOPA Committee:

The following is the basis of objections to the Findings of Fact and Conclusion of
Law with Nonfinal Order.

#24-The Judge held a final status conference which required attendees to attend
in person knowing that Paul Walther's daughter would be unable to attend.

The Judge moved forward with the hearing despite knowing full well the
exchange of exhibits and witness list had not taken place. And, knowing that the
DNR had not provided satisfactory answers to the questions posed by Walthers.
(This statement of fact was omitted from Administrative Law Judge (AL}} which
demonstrates the AL's bias towards the DNR.)

The ALJ still moved forward with the hearing which is an error and a violation of
Walther's rights.

436 to #38- The ALJ failed to allow calculations from the State of Indiana into
evidence which demonstrated the drainage area was less than 1 square mile.
{Another example of bias by the ALl)

#51- The AL failed to understand that approval by the DNR was required in order
for the Thornridge development to move forward and therefore was approval for
the housing development as no approval permit was necessary for the property
to remain as cornfield. (Exhibit D.) |

#68-Reference is made to "unauthorized" utility shed. There are three sheds on
the dam, one of which is owned by Ronald Richards and was documented in an
exhibit picture. The AL failed to document that there is a private home on the
dam property, owned by Ronald Richards which was stated numerous times by
Walthers and included in various exhibit documents by the DNR.

#118 & #119- ALl states that Walther's owns 90% of the Forest Lake Dam. This is
not a statement of fact as the Richards' own a minimum of 40% of the Dam. This
fact was stated numerous times during the hearing. The property behind the dam
is not an issue for the AL as the NOV was the safety of the dam.

P a




#127-the AL refused to allow the settlement by the Richard's to be entered as
evidence. This is a critical error as the settlement offers no solution to the safety
of property or life downstream.

The Richards have the same ability to dewater the lake as Walthers and for the
DNR to release one owner demonstrates the dam safety is a ruse. The ALJ should
not have issued a final order of dismissal to the Richards.

The NonFinal Order requires Walthers to comply with the requirements identified
under the section of the NOV identified as "Action Appropriate to Mitigate the
Violation by completion of either all of Action 1 or all of Action 2, within 90 days.

The final order is without merit as it does not include all dam owners and only
refers to the NOV solutions which is in conflict with a letter issued from the DNR
dated November 25, 2015.

Neither the DNR nor AL} have demonstrated the dewatering solution is compliant
with all local, state or federal agencies and without risk of violation{s}. AU
Stephen Lucas (#9) stated that the DNR would be responsible to confirm that any
solution required by the DNR would be in compliance with all local, state, and
federal agencies. Without this confirmation the ALl is unable to order
requirements of the dam owners.

For 43 years, | have owned a 6.8 acre pond, south of US 36 by State Road 267 in
Hendricks County.

Over the past 43 years, the development of new growth in the Town of Avon,
Avon School System, new subdivisions, CXS Railroad, widening of County and
State Highways, have increased rain and storm water into my unnamed ditch
(farmer's pond) often "illegally" without any active government restrictions or
controls of rate of water flow. Now to add to the issue, the Town of Avon is
building a $15 Million Dollar Bridge on State Road 267 and a new mile of road
water drainage goes into my pond.

The Department of Natural Resources (DNR) on February 28, 2013, declared my
dam is a "high hazard" which is highly disputed. Also, DNR staff declared there
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would be a $10,000 fine and a $1,000 a day cost until "I hire an engineer and
contractor which must do whatever DNR demands”. Or, | must prove the dams is
safe. Or, | must get rid of the pond and dam which is 75 years old and
functioning. The final option requires paying DNR "tens of thousands" extortion
money which then would satisfy the issue with DNR.

| am 84 years old fighting bladder cancer and on a limited income. The Judge
appointed by the Governor denied me a court Appointed Attorney.

How can DNR and the State of Indiana hold an individual responsible for an
increase in surface water drainage of which I have had no control?

My property rights, civil rights, and due process are being aggressively violated by
the Indiana Department of Resources.

| do not have tens of thousands of dollars to respond to a three year court case
when the DNR keeps changing attorneys (three times) and judges once.

Also the interpretation of the law and the facts are inconsistent with the very
poor quality of disclosures made by the DNR.

DNR approved 95 acres of downstream ground northwest of the dam for
Thornridge residential subdivision (Exhibits 9 and D).

Now DNR says my dam puts Thornridge at risk when there is less than 35 acre
water in the pond (Exhibit 6).

DNR declared seepage in the dam. Over the last six months, | have had many
capable people {engineers and contractors) to try to find seepage which they
could not.

JURISDICTION:

DNR never produced maps indicating where the water shed begins and what has
been added illegally over the years.

State Agencies are required to give full disclosure of maps and models especially
to the public when jurisdiction becomes a factor.
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Also, more clarity is needed with Indiana Statutes code which regulates small
dams. When DNR gives them hazard classification.

If the DNR makes all the interpretations of what is and what is not.. this only lends
to abuse and extortion.

There are no streams, creeks or rivers running into Forest Lake Pond. Thereisa
storm water ditch coming out of and off Avon roads, parking lots and streets.

[ have a DNR map describing topographic N3945-W8622.517.5 (Exhibit 9)

This map shows less than one square mile of water drainage area. (Exhibit9 and
Exhibit C-13.)

It appears Indiana Law Statutes IN 14-27-7.5-1 does not say any one of the
following. { Exhibit BB)

It appears DNR and their supervisors gave Dr. Richard's attorney strong advice
(orders?) to obtain an engineer and contractor to remove the 75 year old
emergency spillway. Which | strongly objected to. This only removed 7 acre
water of pressure. This action caused trespassing and thousands of dollars worth
of damage to the emergency spillway. Also, this has changed the water way out
of the pond which now makes the road and bridge at high risk during heavy rains.
(Exhibit 10).

Paul Walthers shares ownership with Donald D. and Carolyn A. Richards of Lake
Forest Dam. (Exhibit A 1).

How can pursuant to Indiana Code 14-25.5, Actions 1 and 2 cited in Exhibit A 1 be
performed without notice of violation being changed or dismissed?

Please help me resolve this.
Thank you.

Paul R. Waithers

Ps
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Michael R. Pence, Governor “
Cameron F. Clark, Director
Indiana Department of Natural Resources

December 8, 2015
Paul R. Walthers
11565 N. Lambert Ct.
Mooresville, IN 46158

Re: Administrative Cause #13-147W, VTS-DM-3951

Mr. Walthers:

Attached you will find the settlement agreement entered into between the Richards and DNR.

/

Regards,

Sean R. Wooding

Office of Legal Counsel
Department of Natural Resources
402 W. Washington St., Rm W295
Indianapolis, IN 46204
317.234.9592
swooding(@dnr.in.gov
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BEFORE THE _
NATURAL RESOURCES COMMISSION
OF THE
STATE OF INDIANA
IN THE MATTER OF:
PAUL WALTHERS, RONALD RICHARDS )
and CAROLYN RICHARDS, ) Administrative Cause
Petitioners, ) Number: 13-147W
)
vS. )
_ : )
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, ) (VTS-DM-3951)
Respondent, )

FINAL ORDER OF DISMISSAL AS TO RONALD AND CAROLYN RICHARDS

On November 17, 2015, Petitioners, Ronald and Carolyn Richards (“Richards”), and
Respondent, Department of Natural Resources (“DNR”), filed an “Agreed Settlement and
Stipulation of Dismissal”. Through the Agreed Settlement and Stipulation of Dismissal,
Richards and DNR agree and stipulate to the dismissal of Richards from this

administrative action.

Being duly advised, the motion is GRANTED. Pursuant to 312 TAC 3-1-9(a), a final
order of dismissal is entered. '

A person who wishes to seek judicial review must file a petition for review in an
appropriate court within 30 days and must otherwise comply with IC 4-21.5-5. Service
of a petition for judicial review is also governed by 312 IAC 3-1-18.

Dated: November 18, 2015, MK@ S

Dawn Wilson

Administrative Law Judge

Natural Resources Commission
Indiana Government Center North

100 North Senate Avenue, Room N501
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2739
(317) 234-9516

A copy of the foregoing was sent to the following:

Paul Walthers Paul Walthers
6591 Lake Forest Drive 11565 N. Lambert Ct.

Avon, IN 46123 Mooresville, IN 46158

Page 1 of 2



exX M

PETITIONERS: Paul Walthers/Ronald and Carolyn Richards
CASE NUMBER: 13-147W

Nicholas Gahl John Mervilde

GAHL LEGAL GROUP MEILS THOMPSON DIETZ & BERISH
102 South Main Street 251 East Ohio St., Suite 830

Zionsville, Indiana 46077 Indianapolis, IN 46204

Sean Wooding

Legal Counsel

Department of Natural Resources
Indiana Government Center South

402 West Washington St., Room W295
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 -

A copy of the foregoing was sent as a courtesy to persons listed below. A person filing a
pleading or documents is not required to serve these persons:

Dave and Jill Byers
6685 Cross Street
Avon, IN 46123

-~ Jeanne Coonse
6541 Lake Forest Drive
Avon, IN 46123

Indira Harden
409 Wild Rose Lane
Avon, IN 46123

Lisa Walthers
5244 11" Street South
Arlington, VA 22204

Jim Andrews, Assistant Engineer
Hendricks Co. Government Center
355 S. Washington Street #209
Danville, IN 46122

DNR Division of Water, Lori Schnaith
DNR Division of Fish and Wildlife, Linnea Petercheff

Page 2 of 2
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE

. This Settlement Agreement and Release ("Agreement") is enfered into this _4th _day
of November, 2015, between Ronald & Carolyn Richatds (collectively “Richatds”) and Indiana
Depattment of Natutal Resources (“DNR”). The Richards and DNR are collectively referred to
herein as the “Parties.”

) RECITALS

A. The Richards own property located at 6605 Lake Forest Drive in Aven Indiana
(“Proporty™).

B. On or about August 22, 2013, DNR issued a Notice of Violation to Paul Walthers
(“Walthers”) and the Richards under VTS-DM-3951 (“NOV”). DNR claims jurisdiction over the
alleged dam impounding Forest Iake (“Forest Lake Dam”).

C. Tn the NOV, DNR alleges that Walthers and Richards, as owners of the Forest
Lake Dam, have violated the Dam Safety Act, Ind, Code 14-27-7.5. DNR demands that Forest
Take Dam either be reconstructed or decomimissioned under supetvision and approval of the

DNR,

D.  Richards and Walthers sought an administrative review of the NOV before the

Natural Resource Commission, and such is now pending under Admignistrative Canse Number
13-147W (“Administrative Action.”).

E. Richards do not own Forest Lake, the primary spillway, or the
auxiliary/emergency spillway of Forest Lake Damy; rather, Richards own propetty immediately
adjacent to Forest Lake that extends south toward the primary spiliway. It is believed by the
Parties that Walthers owns Forest Lake, the primavy spillway, and the auxiliary/emergency
spillway, as well as additional land surrounding Forest Lake Dam.

. As the result of the condition of Forest Lake Dam’s primary spitlway in July
2015, and under the demand of DNR for emergency measures 1o relieve pressure from the
primacy spillway, Richards incutred significant costs to lower the level of Forest Lake;
specifically, Richards employed Holloway Enpinecting and HIS Constructors to plan and
implement the construction of a channel from the emergency spillway.

G. DNR alleges that additional work is required on Forest Lake Dam in order fo
bring it into compliance, or Fotest Lake Dam should be decommissioned.

H.  The Parties desire to resolve and settle their disagreement concetning Forest Lake,

Forest Lake Dam, the NOV, and the Administrative Action, and to avoid additiona! litigation

over these matters (“Disputed Claims”).

I. The Parties believe that the settlement reflected by this Agreement is fair,
reasonable and equitable and in thei respective best interests,
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AGREEMENT

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this
Agreement, the actions taken pursuant thereto, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufticiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Pasties heteby agiee as follows:

1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are incorporated hercin by reference.
2. Settlement, Access, Releaso, Digmissal,

2.1 Payment Texms, Subject o all lerms and conditions conlained in this
Agscement, Richards agree that on of before thitty days after the esccution of this
Agreement, Richards shall deliver to DNR’s counsel a check payable to the “Indiana
Department of Natural Resources” (tax ID number 35-6000158) in the amount of Three
Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00) in full and final settlement of the Disputed Claims, DNR
shall place these funds into the Division of Water Environmental Fund for use on Forest

Lake Dam.

2.9 Property Access. Richards and their heirs or assigns agree to allow access
to DNR and/or Walthers (or their agents) to the Property for the sake of completing work
on Forest Lake Dant that is mutually agreeable to Richards and DNR. The scope of work
may polentially include decommissioning and/or dewateting activities, including the
excavation and placement of soil on the Property. It is agreed that any work on the
Property is completed at no expense to Richavds, and it will not unreasonably intetfere
with their use and enjoyment of the Property, including but not limited to, the destruction
of the wooded area, except for the necessary loss of a couple trees and the filling of the
voids left by the root balls associated with the cutiing of those select trees, The placement
of soil fiom a potential decommissioning of the dam will be placed into two areas, with.
the arca on the Property to receive up to 500 cubic yards of soil not to exceed a 4 foot
depth, and all such soil not to extend beyond the boundaries indicated on the Holloway
Engineering figure attached hereto as Exhibit A. Richards may require any party and/or
contractor completing work on the Property to agree 1o release, indemnify, and hold
harmless Richards, as well as agtee to not record any lien on the Property and to
immediaicly release any lien recorded on the Property as a result of work on the Property.

23 Mutual Release. Except for any breaches by DNR of its obligations under
this Agreement, Richards hereby release and forever discharge DNR from and against
any and all liabilities, claims, actions, ot suits, known or unknown, that Richards have or
could assert against DNR relating to or avising from the Digputed Claims, Similarly,
except for any breaches by Richards of their obligations nnder this Agreement, DNR
hereby releases and forever discharges Richards from and against any and all liabilities,
claims, sctions, or suits, known or unknown, that DNR has or could assert againsi
Richards relating to or arising from the Disputed Claims,

24 Dismissal. In recopgnition of the settlement reached, Richards and DNR
stipulate to the dismissal of the Administrative Action, with prejudice, and within 5 days

2
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this Agreement being fully signed, DNR and Richards will request that the Court enter an
order dismissing the Richards from the Administrative Action. A copy of the “Stipulation
of Dismissal” to be filed with the Court is attached hereto as Exhibit B, This Agreement
shall survive the dismissal of other resofution of this action,

2.5  Non-Admission. Nothing in this Agreement can or should be construed
as an admission of Hability of any Party hereto as to any matter covered by this
Agreement.

2.6  Non-Admissibility, Neither this Agreement nor suny matters velaling to
the terms or negotiations of this Agrecment shall be admissible in any lawsuit or other
proceeding for any purpose ofler than to establish a term or condition of this Agreement
that a Party pusportedly has breached, or te enjoin or distniss. a lawsuit or other
proceeding brought in violation of this Agreement.

2.7 Integration Clause. This Agreement is an integrated agreement and
contains the entire agreement regarding the matters herein between the Patties. No
representations, warranties, or promises have been made or relied on by a Party hereto
other than as set forth herein. This Agreement supersedes and controls any and all prior
communications between the Parties or their representatives relative to the matters

contained herein,

2.8 Severability. If any part, term, or provision of this Agreement shall be
deemed to be prohibited, invalid, or unenforcenble by any applicable law, such provision
shall be replaced by a provision that comes as close as possible to the intended result of
the invalid provision, and the economic puiposc thercof, and which is valid and
enforceable, The invalidity of any patt, term, or provision of this Agreement shall not
invelidate or affect the remaining:pasts, terms, or provisions hereof and all such
remaining parts, terms, and provisions shall remain in full force and effect,

2.9  Counterparts. This Agreoment may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shull be deemed an original.

2.10  Authority to Sign. The undersigned state that cach is duly authorized to
execute this Agreement on behalf of the Party for which each is signing and that cach
fully understands the terms as set forth above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have cxecuted this Agreement by their duly
authorized representatives as of the day first written above.

[SIGNATURES FOLLOWING - THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



Indiana Department of Natural Resources

Odﬁ/é(%( %rl Dated: /! [n ['15 ‘

By: _ Chris Smith

1ts:  Deputy Director

ot

&N

Scan Wooding counsel t6 DNR

Ronald Richards

ated: {t(“ / gf / / _9f

Carolyn Richards

gf&?;/ ﬂ %%ted: /8 [20/5"

. S!:ﬂ ';a g -1 -3
Nicholas Gahl, tounsel to Richards




I ijlﬁ_[

ek

e A

Tl ot S

- '»GW””Q 7







- askad fha

Action 2 described below, is appropriate to mitigate this violation:

eX i)

Michaef R. Pence, Governor

Cameren F, Clark, Director
Division of Water :
402 W. Washington Street
Room W264
ﬂndlana Dapiart men 4 m Naiumi RBasources Indtanapolis, IN 46204
:, Phone (317) 232-4160
T Toll-free {(877) 928-3755 -

Fax (317) 233-4579

MOTICE OF VIOLATION | -
VTS-DM-3951
Paul R. Walthers . Waney AUG

6591 Lake ForestDrive _ ' _ -
Avon, Indiana 46123 Certified Mail #7002 2030 0006 6584 2016

Ronald D & Carolyn A. Richards

6605 Lale Forest Drive ,
Avon, Indiana 46123 Certified Mail # 7002 2030 0006 65684 2030

The Division of Waler hereby issues this Notice pf Violation pursuant to Indiana Code 14-25.5 as

follows:

NATURE OF THE VIOLATION
Forest Lake Dar is a high hazard dam (State Identification #32-17), and is located in Section 10,

Toﬁmsh’ip 15N, Range 1E, showing on the Brownsburg Quadrangle map, and within Hendricks County.

A dam owner is required by Indiana Code (1.C.) 14-27-7.5 to keep the structure {dam) maintained

and in a safe eondition by the exercise of prudence, due regard for lifes and property, and ihe application

of sound and accepted technical principles.

Findmgs'
- The owners of the Forest Lake Dam are Paul R. Walthers, and Ronaid D & Carolyn A. Richards.

The Forest Lake Dam is an unsafe, unauthorized dam. There is no record of a permit issued for

“this dam or as-built engineering plans proving the structure was properly designed and constructed. A

high hazard inspection report has nof been recsived for the structure as required by [.C.14-27-7.5.

The owners of the Forest Lalke Dam have falled o mainiain and keep the sfruciure in the stale of
repé" ir and operating condition required by the exercise of prudence, due reaard for life and properiy, and
ine applma‘tron of sotnd and accepted engineermc; ptinciples which is a viclation of Indiana Code 14-27-
7.5
~ The owners hava not complied with the recommiendations of ihe remudry__.?ﬁ, 2013 leiter which
the owners io complele 2 series of scheduled aciions inf:!tsding' refaining registered
professional engineer exparienced in dam design, performing high hazard -inspection reporis and
submiiting such reports to DNR. Also requesied was a lowering of the fake {o safer level until safety
deficiencies could be resolved. These actions and the failures fo act are violations of Indiana Code 14~

27-7.5. ,
ACTION APPROPRIATE TO MITIGATE THE VIOLATION

The lDepartmen‘c of Natural Resouirces has dstermined either all of Action 1 or alf of

An Equal Opportunity Employer
Printed on Recycled Papsr
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1. -

Action 1: _ L
1) Paul R, Walthers, and Ronald D & Carolyn A. Richards shall hire a registered.

professional engineer experienced in dam design, constructiof, repair, and
maintenance. .

2) Paul R. Walthers, and. Roriald D & Carolyn A. Richards and/or the registered
professional engineer shall immediately activaie the dam’s Incident and
Emergency Action Plan (IEAP). ' -

3)  Paul R. Walthers, and Ronald D & Carolyn A. Richards andfor their authorized
representatives, within ten days (10 days) of receipt of this notice, shall have the
registered professional engineer submit a lstter fo the Division of Water stafing that
hefshe has been contracted to develop a plan fo reconsiruct the dam and spillway
to safe conditions. Enclosed is a list of engineering firms with dam experience.

4)  Paul R. Walthers, and Ronald D & Carolyn A. Richards and/or their authorized B
representatives, shall under the direction of 5 registered professional engingt- - o E
immediately and safely dewater or lower the lake level fo g safer level determined; .
by the engineer and agreed to by DNR. S e T !

5)  Paul R. Walthers, and Ronald D & Carolyn A. Richards and/or fheir authorized
representatives, shall obtain a permit from the Depariment of Natural Resources to _
reconsiruct the dam and spillway to a safe condition and shall submit as-builf plans

at the completion of the project,

" 8) Paul R. Walthers, and Ronald D & Carolyn A. Richards and/for their authorized
representatives, shaif maintain the lowered water level until the reconstruction plar
has been approved, completed under the direction of g registered professional
engineer and as built plans submitted 1o the Department. - .

Or

RS -
5 :
S

Action 2; : .
: 1) Paul R. Walthers, and Ronald ‘D & Carolyn A. Richards shall hire a ragistered

professional engineer experienced in dam design, consiruction, repair, and
maintenance. 7 .

2) Paui R. Walihers, and Ronald D & Carolyn A. Richards and/or the registerad
m's Ineldent and Emergency Action Plan

professional enginesr shall activate YOUF da
(EEAP),

3) Paul R Walhers, and Hopald 1 2 Carolyn A, Richards andlor sair atithicrized
repieseniatives, shall under the diteciion of a registered professional engineer,
immediately and safely dewai'e;r or lower the lake level in g safer level determined by

the registered professional engineer and agreed fo by DNR, '

4) Paul R. Walthers, and Ronald D & Carolyn A. Richards andfor their authorized = e L w
represeniatives, within ten days (10 days) of receipt of this notice, shail have the - o
registered pmfassional engineer submit a lster o fic Division of Water siating thag

- he/she has been contracted fo develop a plan fo safely permanently dewatsr and
control breach (decommission) the dam.

NOVY VTS_-DM~3951 Page 2



INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204-2249
INTER-DEPARTMENT COMMUNICATION

Novemher 2, 2001

0 ' Mr. Brad Stecklerx
Supervisor, Pre-Engineering Studiles

FROM: Mr. Bill Schmidt A
Hydraulics Engineer

SUBJECT: Preliminary Hydraulic Review

Structures S.R. 267 over tributary ko White Lick Creek
Des. No.: 0012640

Contract No.: 8TP-129-41{)

Location: 0.4 miles south of U.S. 36 {railrocad bridge}.

Consulfant: ust

Digcussion of Sstructure Sizing for praliminary hydraulics

The project discussed ahove involves tha 8.R. 267 structure over
tributary to White Lick Creck as part of the railroad bridge. . The current
seructure is a 6.92 ft. high by 10.67 ft. span corrugated metal arch pipe. The
existing structure is not hydraulically adequate., The recomuended replacement
sbyructure is a 5 ft. high by 12 fk. span three or four-sided concrete box
culvert with wingwalls {or projecting). A 6 ft. high by 12 £ft. span concrete

arch may be used as well.

Approximate Drainage Area
Approximate Q100 Discharge
Approximate QLO0 Depth

Maximum Allowable Backwater Q100 = 1.0 ft.

Required Minimum Wet Axea Below Q100 = ses sizing above

Approximata Grade Raise = 0.0 £E., .

¥inimum Freeboard = 0.0 ft. T
= 12.01 ft/s.

outlet Velocity

If you have any questions or comments, please contact me at
{317) 232-5332.
_________J""

s

WPS

ce: Hydraulic File (1)

C-13
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Pau} Walthers
11565 N Lambert Ct
Mooresville, IN 46158-6565

COctober 20, 2015

Hendricks County Board of Commissionars G.E. Steuerwald

355 South Washington Street ' Attorney at Law for Hendricks County
Danville, iN 46122 '

commissioners@co.hendricks.in.us _ gsteuerwald@shzwiaw.com

RE: Dam and Forest Lake in Avon, IN
Dear 5irs,

[, Paul Walthers, satisfied the exit of volume.of water movement (cfs) for 33 years out of my 6.8 acre
pond without any damage to people or progerty.

In July 2015, Kenneth Smith of DNR ordered the removal of the 74+ year cld emergency spiilway of
which I strongly objected. The destroyed emergency spitlway h'a_s_chan'gujad‘-”cih‘é"Watérrw:aviqu,tfaﬁfmxj
¢pond? ' -

Please, you are on notice not to hold me responsible in any way for any road:or bridge damage:in'the
future.

Please call me anytime ~317.370.0954
Thank you,

(ol R UWalte..

Paul R. Walthers
pwalthers@att.net

ool Lisa Walthers
Ldwalthers@yahoo.com




o ,-‘f ichael R, Pence, Govemor
&G Hobert E. Carter, Jr., Director

q?; ./ Division of Water
' . , &g G -é%% ;Uwvggihington Strest
Indiana Department of Natural Resources indianapolis, IN 46204

Phone:  (317) 232-4160

. IMres: (877) 928-3755
www.in.gov/dnr To
' . Fax:  7317)233-4579

- Paul R. Walthers : " February 28, 2013
8591 Lake ForestDr -~ . .

Avon, IN, 456123

Re: Forest Lake Dam, Hendricks Co., 3217

Richards Ronald D & Carolyn A ' CERTIFIED MAIL 7007 2680 0080 6708 7439

6605 Lake Forest Dr
Avon, IN 46123

Dear Dam Qwners:

This ieiter s in regard to.zn unauthorized, unsafe dam located on your property in Section 10, T.15 N:, R.
1 E. in Hendricks County. Indiana Gode 14-27-7.5 esiablishes indiana Department of Natural Resources
(IDNR) authority over a dam that meets any one of the following conditions:

- The d'rainage area above the dam is more than one (1) square mile,.or

The dam impounds more than one hundred (1 00) acre-feet of water to the top of dam or fo the maximum

pool level, whichever is lower, or . . :
The dam exceeds twenty (20) feat in height from the lowest point in natural streambed under the centerline
of ihe darh fo the fop of dam, or

If someone downstream of the dam petitions IDNR, in wilting, fo investigafe the hazard classification and
IDNR finds that a potential failure of the dam [nay cause loss of life/injury and/or serious damage to a
downsiream structure (such as a house), then the dam wilf be considered nigh hazard and will be under

* IDNR's jurisdiction (regardiess of tha dam siza).

The Ferést Lake Dam is locatéd in a drainage area more than 1 square mile and therefore, the structure
is within IDNR’s jurisdiction. There are significant safety and compliance issues with this structure. The

most obvious are listed balow:

1)

2z

et

The dam is classified as high hazard since an uncontrolled breach of the structure could cause
sericus damage io the downslream Thornridge Subdivision and possible loss of life,

The existing spillway system is inadeguate to 2 fely pass ine design storm for this high
struciura, _ . :

The upsiream and downsitream slopes of the embankmeit ars steep and appsar marginaily
stable. A slope faiture would reduce the crest width leading to a nogsible breach.

The maintenance of ths struciure is deficlent. The trees and the 1

the integrity of the dam,

There are no racords in IDNR's files that indicate that permit was issued on this dam or
built” enginesring plans proving the strycture was properly designed and constiucied. '
A high hazard inspection report, prepared by your engineer and required by 1.C. 14-27-7.5, has
not been received by the Division of Water. The owner of a high hazard shuctwe {dam) is
required to have a professional engineer ficensed under IC 25-31 make an engineesting inspection
of the high hazard structura at least one {1} time every two (2) years, and to submil the report io

the Division of Wailer.

(£ =1

ol

N

Tl

]

)

Section & of 1.C. 14-27-7.5 requires a dam owner o maintain and keep a dam in the state of repair and

opargling condition

required by the exercise of piudence, due regard for fife and property and the

application of sound and accepted engineeting principles.
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APPLICATION: FH-16,625%
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STATE OF INDIANA
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESQURCES

T et ey,

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION IN A FLOODWAX

L sl s e SO clastenbid: sy

: AQERT:
Thornkidge, Inc. Parsons, Cunningham & Shartle
p,0. Box 188 ‘ Engineers, Inc.
Plainfiald, iN 46168 46 South Tennesase Street
Danviile, IN 46122

BT o O AR WRE

: AUTHORITY:
UNT whitae Lick Creek 1C 13-2-22, 310 IAC 6-1

4
.

“Thy propoiad TharnRidge: Fasidedt 1at  subd(viston
15, Contruztion activitas within the floodvay witl conilat afi two 14" diaseter
sectlonz, and approxisstely 30- Uinear faot of a grasa sysle with 411 tide slopes.
the bass of the cutists for energy dlasipation. Outails of the project sra shown

Jurtery 30, 1993, snd February 13, 1993,

will ba devaloped landward of the floodway excapts partions of Lats 1}, 14, and
ttarn sever outfall pipas with setal and
Rprap laid on geotextiles witl be placed at

an plans. received at the Division of Ustar on

PAQJECT LOCATION: S
APP‘"’“M“ ly: 2‘:"{‘\40\-“\ IR Fuft.ﬁ‘t-_ Lak# out t‘g"t:?:}
at Avon, Washington Towdship, Hendrickd Cednty
ek, HEY, sWk, Section 10, T. 15 N., &. 1 E., Srovnsburg Gum'=angla
UTH Coordinates: Oownstresm ® KA00480 North, 350400 Eeat

biest o the o -

Thi }-‘,ﬁ:“ﬂaa:i-‘.‘mman‘;mam};fmummﬁ?ji;,;t-i.t;.h;:i“ﬁ;;xgmr..L.n.-.auptnmcaau;zmn;_f;sa_i.tmi;‘"ia;ga,i{i;
conditions as atated on the pages entitled *General Concitions” and nspecific Conditfans”, This parai{t or any of the conditions

_——~———kh$4#h~¥tgtﬂnitlﬂl—l¢¥—h4—lpplll!d;h¥glpn1#inq_J£ui_ldlinilltl!i!ﬁgﬂinilu¢4A$uih_t!!il!;ll.ﬁﬂ!!Eﬂ!dkhf#lhi_ﬁﬂﬂiﬂi!iﬁlﬁi!!_Qﬁg!r’ -

and Pracedurws Act, IC 4~21.5, snd by tha Depaprtwent’s rulas relating to adjudicative proseadings, 310 1AC 0.6, In order to
cbtain an sppeal, B vritten petivion must be filed within 1B days of tha mafiing of this notice, It should he dddrazued to:

He. Staphen L, tucms, firector
piviafan of Hearings
foom Y272
402 West Washington Streat
fndianapalin, Indiana 46204

The petition shwuld contein speeific rensont for the appesl and Indicats the portion{s) of the permit to which the eppenl partaina,
It an sppeal 12 f1lad, the dstural Aescurces Comminrfon viLL wake the tina( ogancy determinat{on foluswing & legal procasding

conductad bafors sn Adninfetentiva Law Judge,

'

A2

Ropil 7. 1993

Hate John M. SBimpann, ﬁ;/
Director

o T....Division.of Water ... . ...

pocumants prepsred by: Jessica Yansavilie




- oo — BTATE OF INBIANRS — 7 & 7
DEPARTHMENT QF NATURAL RESQURCES

SPEGIFIC CONDITIOQNG

— . P

ST B SR L e T G b T i A AT B S e LT N e S T R e Z1iyn T

B { 1) othar than thote mensurss ncceuary to satlafy :ht "Gmernt" uncl “Spuh‘!c" conditiom, thtre ahnt{ hc ha dlvht!m
from the fnformstion recelvad at the Sivision of Nater on the follouing dete(s) without the prior written spproval of

the Department of Hatural Resources!

R
-—}-?;.:h'\:

tnfornat{on recaived: Januvary 30, 1995, and February 13, 1995

this approval chall become void ff construction has not bedn nitiated within 24 months from April 7, 1993

t 33 omintain functional eroaton and sedimsnt control measuret vntil all distu-bed sresa zre stabilized

protact atark vater {nlats from sadiment entry vhare storm severs outlet directly into channal ot floaduay

{ &)
{ %) control sroaton and sediment on Land ¥djacent ta the floodvay to pravent resulting sedimentation of tha channal or
{ Looduny
( &) seed and protect all disturbed straambonks with erosfon control blankets when they are not protsctad by ather structurel .
sithods NS
€7y minimize and contain within the profect timita all tree snd brush clearing and provide the opportunity to utiliza |
o cleared troea of Trswood amd tisber size
{ 8) §¢ this project i1 lecated in an urbsn setting and invelvas the rekoval of mare than five tress, Incorporate tree
N planting into the site ravegetation andfor sitigation ple

{ 9) revegetats all bare and distfurbtied arass

- upory epoplation

i 4
R (10 plsca all axcavated sutorial landvard of the flcoduay
1" ] ¥
Vi (11} da not Leave felled trens, Brush, or other dabrls {n the fisedvay “
4 L.

{12} do not construct op place any renidences or abodes {incliding manufacturad homwe as definad under 44 CFR 59,1} in the :
floadvay ar shown on the encloand floodway map dalineated by the Dapartment dated April 7, 1995 TI' !

any other construation, fneluding muéavacion and ffLL, proposed In the floodway will rrquire the prior yritven approval

i {13}
af the Departmant of Natural Rescurces
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Moma to lo: FW-16,625
April 7, 1998
Pags Two
«Thixprojectin-conjunction-witlsany-othior previstisly aspToved o sty fropo pro)ects Tot [ R
in the floodway near this site will not cause an adverse effect on the efficlency or the capacity of the
floodway, nor will it pose an unreasonable hazard to life or property.
Recommendations: The Division of Water recommends this application be approved with the
following condition(s): _ : ‘
O place all excavated material landward of tha floodway (FWG1) ]
© do not leave fellod trees, brush, or other debris In the floodwiy (FW03)
® do not construct or place any residences or abodes (including manufactured homes as defined
under 44 CFR 59.1) in the floodway as shown on the enclosed floodway map delineated by
the Department dated April 7, 1995
© any other construction, including excavation and fill, proposed in the floodway will require
the ptior written approval of the Department of Natural Resources
. N
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;i State of Indlana
DEPARTMENT OF MATURAL RESOURCES 3
o DBIVISION OF WATER MEMORANDUM Date: - April-7, 1995 3
From: Jossica Sassevillo i
i Application No. FW-16,628 Hydraulle Engineer 4
. Dratnage Aress’ Approximately 1.} square miles.

2

Hydrology: Based on the discharge request form completed by the Hydrology and Hydraulics ‘

: Section, the 100-year frequency flood discharge of 800 ofk can be expacted to pass the proposed sits,
i Water: The purpose of the proposed project.is to construct the ThornRidge residential subdivision \
i along_the right (nonth) streambank of an unnamed tribu’ary to. White Lick Creek. Construction
o1 activities within the floodway will include: dual 18" dismeter storm sewer outfall pipes with metal end i
S sections, and approximately 30 linear féct of n grasy swale with 4:1 side slopes. Riprap will be placed by
al the base of both outlets for encrgy dissipation, '
< __Based.on.the.plans.receivad.atthe Division.of Water.on.Janu 30,1995, and February 13,1995, oo .
: ~~{lig proposed jiroject Will ot décréase (e cross-Sectional oW area of the strcam. The end 10 S——
and riprap placed for the storm sewer autfalls will conform to the cxisting bank, The siwalo will not ',':'
. have oinbankments placed on cither side. :
, s odtthecrosy=§ CHOTEPTOv i:i“:""i“’%"“"= D5 a-deyeint-trHe2—arn !5;‘ : =
model for the stream, This was done to determins the 100-year elevation and the floodway limits, B
L A model was comploted for the length of the stream from the mouth at White Lick Crecek to just g
downstream of the proposed project for Recommendation #32-941209-1 by Denn Barnhouse, This i
model waa complied from 2' mapping, H |
The contours and cross-sections submitted for the proposed subdiviston did not match closely to the -8
oo 2" mapping. Also, the Recommendations Section model used the slope conveyance method witha - - B
N much stoeper slope than Is present for this site. For these reasons, only three crosa-sections at the B
L upstream end of the model wero utifized for this analysls, The (hrea submitted cross-sections for the
sito wore added to the thres cross-sections downstrsam. The starting water surfhce clovation was
used at the downstream cross-section. The 100-year clovation ranges from 783.4, N.G.V.D,, at the
H downstream end of the alte to 783,7, N.GLV.D,, ! the upstream end of the site. The flocdway nnd B
) flood frings were plotted on the submitted site plan and will be enclosed with the permit, Peggy |
Shepherd, Section Head of Hydrautics and Hydrology, has been involved In the floodway . . § 1
determination and gave the final approval,
i
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DXACHARGE REQUEST FORM ., L e
° et 5099
r.ooation Informntion . :

bY' M‘M s,.ss_gse\IJLLE- Dat.’ _Q'MS‘__ ﬂﬂctlon: M”
o Frequencyt lou-¥& b

ciarint A9 b HAREEAY 34 00 ) I RURTR Y LU DT .qy[u-‘ m‘qvm.i‘-‘j@ *‘!“"’fl‘l-‘ﬂ.“o"f"“',“?'!?‘ﬁ!“'mﬂi‘“-“"'y" LR e
v A ot J - LA P IR 2

i * ‘ . X - \ l.' g

. . N . L oo \l ' .

‘Laoakien: dasariptions TAbpgay. 200" e i EpREsT CAKE /D RoAR: caNEEr
Quad name! _BROWMSRUG UTHN; 4 Hooreo tm-m. §504L00
BASIN #1 /P County: _UpMpRicks _ Sectiont o Township: jgﬂ_ Range: {5

« Location Ralatad Paramaetars
Stream ramarks: Precipitation indax: ”~3

USGS area (if used): Rallef; (86(~ 780 ) = fﬁl
Intervehing area: Drainage density: Codet __

Total Drainage area: . Runoff coafficlent! ' . Z

Non—conﬁfibuting araa: Slopa: ( fgé;::;’ y = 25,58

curve number: I,Z;‘*J-MF! o)
Time of concke-nt,rn,tion: A3l

)
(Method codat
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TREMONT 32 ML .
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' 525+« o EAST }
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(,/. , 4 ‘\\
FIELD) H 1549 NMENT PRINTING OFFICE: 1972 1486—31079
i NW mmwcooa.m_
1:24 000 , ROAD CLASSIFICATION
O il
s Primary highway, Light-duty road, hard or
W0 400 5000 6000 7000 FEET ;
oo sty R oo 0 T hard surface. . . ... iMproved surface.. e
0 T(ll\r{t»_,ﬁxmwmﬁkll\.}m\ Secondary highway,
hard surface.. ... .. s —m—— Unimproved road. ..s=======>

R
ERvAL 10 FEET
‘AN SEA LEVEL

ONAL MAP ACCURACY STANDARDS

SURVEY, WASHINGTON, D, C. 20242
 RESOURCES, INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204
> AND SYMBOLS 1S AVAILABLE ON REQUEST

ocbbm}zmrm LOCATION

o

AH\U_ interstate Route pﬁw\w U. 5. Route ,“(u State Route

BROWNSBURG, IND.
N3945--WB622.5/7.5

1970

AMS 3765 |V SW-SERIES V851

f

86°22/30"




